Town of Gnesen Planning Commission
November 19th, 2025, Minutes, 7pm

Members Present: Carter Williams, Sherri Underthun, Richard Delano Matt Thibodeau, Pete Bergman, Kathy
Buran, Carol Jacobson, Nancy Poppenberg, Zoning Officer Mike Polzin, Zoning Officer Rick Hogenson and
Deputy Clerk Sara Rowe, Planning and Zoning Secretary.

Members Absent: Joe Ferguson

Others Present: Nancy Poppenberg, Town Board Liaison, Randy Dulinsky, Mike Rowe, Phil and Barb Bolf,
Chris May, Cella and Dave Stewart, Adam Marzolf, Jay and Marcia Haller, Matthew Beyer, Jeff Carlson, and
Al Jensen

Approval of the agenda: Carol made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Kathy. Carter asked for the
removal of the Island Anchorage topic from the agenda and it be moved to the December agenda. The motion
passed.

Approval of October 15th, 2025 minutes: A motion was made by Pete to approve the minutes, seconded by
Carol. Matt asked to look at the approval of the September 17, 2025 minutes that said “Matt did not think we
could strike things from the minutes. They stay in the minutes but are noted as we are doing by our discussion”.
He stated he didn’t know who that discussion was attributed to, but he did not find that it was understandable, so
he stated he wanted to clarify the purpose of the minutes and whether or not we can redact them after they
already happened. The minutes are a record of what happens here, what comes out of our mouths goes into the
minutes. We can make notes later in time to say, [ don’t believe that is what I said or that is different than what I
recall, but on the October 15, 2025 minutes, that was the point he was trying to make, we can’t edit the minutes
a month later and come up with a revisionist history. If it comes out of our mouths, it gets recorded by the
Secretary and that is what the written record is from tonight and that gets published so everybody in the
Township knows what was said by whom and there is an accurate record. Carter asked if it changes the sentence
in the minutes they are looking at here. Matt said he doesn’t know if he can change that sentence because he
doesn’t’ understand it. By speaking and putting it into the November record now, if someone were to read the
October 15, 2025 minutes with this months minutes, they would understand what has been attributed to him on
the October 15, 2025 minutes. Matt asked how the Deputy Clerk normally takes the minutes, if there is a
recording. She stated she does both recording and long hand. He asked if the Clerk listens to the recording from
beginning to end. She said usually, yes. Matt gave an example of someone wanting to change the minutes with a
football analogy for further discussion. It came out of someone’s mouth, it has to be recorded, even though it
was incorrect. That’s what he was explaining with Carol at last month’s meeting. From month to month, we
can’t make revisionist changes. Carter stated this was taken probably from recording and should stay in these
minutes. Notes from this month’s meeting minutes should show the discussion related to what that meant. Matt
said that would be helpful. The minutes stand the way they are. Discussion turned to the Oscar Pit. Matt quoted
the minutes from October 15, “There was further discussion about the other hot mix plant they have which is not
in this area”. Matt stated that when that discussion was had at last month's October 15 meeting, the
representative from Ulland gave more information about where the other hot mix plant was that was not in the
area. He knew it was said at the meeting, and would like that information to be included in the minutes from
October 15 of 2025. The rep said he knew physically where it was and what the name of it was. Matt was
hoping probably Sara could go back and include that information. Carter thought the location for the other hot
mix plant was in the southern part of the state. Matt said it had a name. Carter asked if Sara could do that. She
stated there was a malfunction with the recorder and it didn’t all get recorded. She doesn’t have those minutes,
but it is normally what she does. Tonight she had two recorders going. Carter asked if we could call Ulland
Brothers and ask where the pit is. Matt said that would be helpful. Matt asked that Sara put in tonight’s minutes
that the minutes of October 15 of 2025 may not be completely accurate because she did not have the recording.
Sara stated she had sixteen minutes of the recording from last month. Sherri asked if the minutes were sent out
over a week ago. We do get them at least a week ahead of time and we are supposed to be able to read the



Page 2 of 7, P&Z Minutes November 19th, 2025

information and send thoughts or corrections. Kathy affirmed Sherri’s interpretation. Carter said that we all
should be paying a little more attention. Sherri further stated that no we cannot redact the minutes, but we can
make minor changes and that line about what Matt said could have been clarified better. Kathy said it could
have been clarified better sooner. Matt said he contacted Sara and they had an email exchange. He didn’t know
whether or not she was able to work on that before the meeting. The meeting minutes from October 15, 2025
were voted on and approved.

Approval of Minutes from MN Power Hearing from August 20, 2025: Carter made a motion to accept the
minutes as presented with the addendum. It was seconded by Kathy. The motion passed.

Attendance: Joe was excused because of long term medical and will come back when he is able. Kevin was
missing. Nancy said the Town Board decided to let Kevin Middleton go, the reason was because at the October
meeting, there was a discussion in which Kevin had sort of applied for a permit not filling it out completely and
went ahead with the job he was doing for himself without completing the permit and he sated to all of us in this
room that he knows he did it without a permit, he would do it again and he would pay the fine. It was between
Jon, Gary and herself that they thought he did not follow the role of the position he held for representing the
township and they released him because of that.

Carter asked if there was anyone in the audience that would like to speak on something not on the agenda. He
said to raise your hand if you decide to join in.

Old Business:

Humes: Mike said we are in transition with Dave Humes between Rick and himself. There is a pause in any
activity with the Township and David Humes at this time. Carter said it was originally assigned to Rick and
given to Mike. Nancy said Rick has recused himself. Mike and Rick met earlier this evening to get up to speed.
Carter asked when Mike intends to act. Mike said before the next Planning and Zoning meeting. Carter asked if
it could be before that. Mike said he has to deal with Hemlock Dr. and that’s going to take some attention.
Carter said ok, but to move on Humes as soon as possible. Sherri asked if we have an answer to the
administrative subpoena. Rick said the administrative subpoena was vetoed by the attorney. He said it’s not a
good idea and the training session Rick went to, Rick stated that that attorney totally confirmed that Rick had his
head up his butt while he was trying to pursue this and that the two attorneys were right. Rick is transitioning all
the information to Mike as quickly as possible to move forward with the search warrant. Rick will give the
Planning and Zoning Commission a copy of what he gives Mike concerning that search warrant application.

Hemlock Dr: Mike said the Township was notified by our attorney of a favorable judgement to proceed with an
abatement action on Hemlock Dr. From the date we start it, we have 21 days to complete all activity. The three-
week window has not started yet. He is making a plan with Jon Nelson of things Mike thinks they need to do to
be shared with Township Supervisors before their Monday meeting. Kathy asked who cleans it up in 21 days.
Mike said Arrowhead Regional Corrections can do it with inmates with no charge to the Township. That was
three months ago, and Mike needs to renew that conversation so it can go to the Board. Carter stated that if we
need to hire some assistance otherwise, the Township would have to pay the initial fee and get reimbursed by
the landowner, including attorney fees.

Fees for not pulling permits/ starting work before permit approval-Nancy: Carter said it was a fee for
starting a project without having the building permit completely finished, signed and dated, etc. Matt asked
wouldn’t that be a fine. Carter confirmed it would be a fine and the Board has asked us to review the current fine
which he understood to be the initial 60-dollar fee plus 60. Double the expense of the permit and it was felt that
was not realistic for a deterrent. It is a recurring problem in the Township. The Board has asked Planning and
Zoning to review if we want a higher fee for that, if we can take a recommendation to the Board. Randy asked if
the permit is complete at the end of everything, after the fine and everything, when you say you double it? Do



Page 3 of 7, P&Z Minutes November 19th, 2025

you have to finish doing the permit out and it has to be right to what it’s supposed to be? Carter said when the
permit is issued the person wanting the permit is told what it has to be. Nothing is to start until this is signed,
sealed and delivered. Randy asked about the end results being up to the permit specs. Randy said we should just
leave it at that because the final job gets done. Carter said no need to get a permit if you are going to ignore it.
Rick said what is being discussed now is that if you wish to build a garage, you need to get a permit to build that
garage. You fill out the permit and it’s still here at the Township, and somebody gets over there and your garage
is built without the permit having been approved, this is when the fine comes in. Or if you have started work on
your project without it being approved by Gnesen Township. Carter stated some of the townships in this, if you
start without the building permit completed, you are required to remove everything that’s been done and return it
to the condition it was in prior. Randy said that’s getting a little strong. Carter said it's getting very strong and it
eliminates this, “let’s go and do something and get a permit later”. Carter said the question in front of the
Planning Commission is, do you want to increase the fine and what would be the recommended increase. Rick
said he is totally in agreement with an increased fine for somebody who disregards getting a permit and approval
first but what is the level we are talking about. Can Pete have someone put a bunch of gravel in his yard and
smooth it all out? Has he gone too far? What is the level acceptable to prepare your property? Mike and Rick
have to determine this. Rick has run into slabs already poured. It was approved on the site, but he has never run
into that before. Matt asked if it was difficult to enforce based on the rules we have now? Rick asked what are
you going to enforce? If you choose to level your property and bring in gravel, and you come in three weeks
later and ask for a permit to build a garage there, are you already in violation? Pete asked if there was anything
in the Ordinance that would preclude this. Rick said not that he has ever seen. Pete said then nothing has been
done to start a project. Carter said unless you need a land alteration permit. Matt asked if it was in relation to
building a structure? Carter said no, it’s a land alteration permit. It’s in relation to changing the topography. Pete
said, then that’s where you start. Rick said not every building permit requires a land alteration permit. Carter
said no it doesn’t so when you go out there and look at it and say, I guess it didn’t need it. If you go out there
and find footings are poured and slab is done that is a different story. Mike said if he went out there and they put
in physical structure like footings or concrete, that is significant. Carter said it’s a good point but asked if we
want to recommend a different fine. Kathy stated she wanted a higher fine. Sherri said now it is double the
permit fee. Kathy said if we stay at 60 it is going to keep happening. Matt asked, has it happened and how many
times. Carter said it’s happened quite a bit recently. Matt said that’s what we said in October, and as he said in
the minutes that’s what we keep saying, but no one has ever told him a number and what the time period is.
Nancy said it shouldn’t happen once. Let’s say it happened four times and then those four people have told
everybody else don’t worry about getting a permit. You just pay a 60-dollar fee at the end, and then the next
time it’s eight because those people tell somebody else. If you put a fine on it that’s reasonable then those same
people say don’t start without filling out the permit and getting the permit because you are going to get fined, so
it goes in the other direction. Pete said the Board wants a recommended number. Matt said, or no recommended
number. Matt said let’s ask the people of the township and see what they think. Anyone have any thoughts on
fine or no fine? Randy said it should be left alone because the end result is you have a permit and it’s in specs. If
it’s not in specs then you have to take care of that. Chris May said the permit process should go to review. The
review process is not a permit. There is no permit until the review process is completed. Carter said the zoning
officers do that review process. Chris May said right, so you can’t build anything until that review is complete
and that permit is issued. As far as footings, you need a building inspection before you pour concrete to make
sure it’s grounded. You need an inspection for anything, even soil alteration. You might need to look at the soil
before you pour concrete. Carter said our process is an inspection before the concrete is poured to make sure that
the building is per the permit the way it was issued. Rick said we are zoning officers and basically what we do is
look at the location of what you want to build and where you want to build. He makes sure that your yard
setback, your road front setbacks are proper. If you say you want to put it there, and there is no land alteration
needed, then you will get your permit, and it’s go for it. He will contact you some months later and say how are
you doing on your project. Gnesen does not inspect. We tell you yes, where you want to put it is good with our
ordinances. If you wish to pour substandard concrete, that’s on you. We just tell you where you can put it. We
don’t have periodic inspections. Carter stated we don’t have any building code. Rick said the State has their
building codes. We do not enforce those electrical and plumbing codes. If you are going to put in a garage you
go to the State and County for your plumbing and sewer and electrical. We don’t inspect the soil under the
garage, we don’t make sure there’s twelve inches of material on the outskirts of your slab. Pete asked Rick if it
would be fair to say the most important thing would be location within the site. Rick said yes. Carter mentioned



Page 4 of 7, P&Z Minutes November 19th, 2025

there is a height restriction in Gnesen and should be noted on the building permit. Jay said then there should be
different fines if you disregard the whole township and just go in the woods and start building something, but
when you have the inspector there, and everything is good, and meet setbacks, it’s kind of two different courses
here. There is still not a board or a nail pounded on that property if you guys are wondering. Carter asked again,
what do we want to do. Kathy made a motion to make the fine one thousand dollars. Carter seconded that
motion. Rick verified what it is now is double the permit fee, not the 60-dollar number. Rick asked is one
hundred and fifty dollars going to stop someone in a hurry for a permit? Matt asked Jay if no nail has been
pounded? Matt said he is confused. Nancy said she is too. Matt asked if we are having a general discussion
about something specific that is happening. Nancy said no. Matt said he is really confused because if you are
dealing with an issue right now and that somehow we are having a general discussion that relates to Jay Haller
Matt wants to know about it. Jay said he doesn’t have a problem, but it originated from a member who is
missing. Rick said there are some circumstances within the last six months that he has gone to. He can’t speak to
Mike. Rick has gone there and there has been some obvious progress made towards building. Not just dirt.
That’s why Rick brought it up earlier, what’s our clarification, because a thousand dollars gets pretty tough on
some people. Kathy said, “So”. Dick said a thousand dollars is too extreme. Carter asked for a vote. The vote
failed. Pete made a motion that we table this topic so we can sort out what we talked about tonight and bring it
back in December. Matt seconded the motion. Matt asked what the fines are now. Carter said there is a list of
them in the Ordinance. Nancy said it was in the hundreds range for a fine. Matt asked what the highest one was.
Carter said it’s not a big amount. It was felt raising the fines didn’t do much good. The vote was passed to table
this topic until the December meeting.

A correction is added to this section: “The penalty for after-the-fact or late filing of permit fee is triple the
required fee. Note: In place of assessing this penalty, the Town may seek complete restoration of site at owner’s
expense.”-This is quoted from the Town of Gnesen Zoning Permit Fee Schedule.

Building Permit Cover Sheets: The Deputy Clerk said that Sarah Blix came up with the cover sheet as a result
of people being confused about how the process works with permits and is similar to the variance process cover
letter. When somebody comes in and wants to get a building permit, we will give them that cover sheet with it.
The other paper is a check list that somebody asked for last month. We have check lists that we use to process
permits. This is an example of the most common, the building permit. We use this in the office in Gnesen. The
Deputy Clerk starts with the checklist process when a permit is brought in. She passes it off to the zoning
officers and they continue on with that process. Sherri said when you apply for a building permit you get a list of
what you have to provide up front, a septic compliance or plan. All that information is laid out along with the
fee structure. She liked the letter but suggested the last line be in a larger font up higher and yellow highlighted.
Kathy said it should first and foremost be at the top. Sherri said that the check list is for the office and the people
in the community, we don’t always follow the rules. The Deputy Clerk said she was asked at last month’s
meeting how we go about processing applications.

Cannabis Ordinance: Carter said we were dealing with the more potent part of the Cannabis regulations
before. Since then, the state has come out with new regulations and guidelines, forcing us to revisit our
ordinance. You have a cannabis and lower potency edibles combination application. We are asked to deal with
this tonight because of the state’s deadline. We have inquiries, so it needs to get taken care of. He asked the
Commissioners to look through it and then look through the Cannabis Ordinance. It was noted by the Deputy
Clerk that only Carter had a copy of it. A short recess was taken to get copies. Sherri made a motion that we
change the agenda due to the complication of the cannabis ordinance changes that are needed, that we move it to
the bottom of “New Business” and cover everything else in its order after that. The motion was seconded by
Matt. The vote passed.

Short Term Rental for the Stewarts: David Stewart spoke about a property next to their house on Island Lake
that they inherited about six years ago but couldn’t rent it out because they did not own the property. Now MN
Power is selling the property. They just purchased it last week. They want to rent it out. It has a septic that the
County passed but the Township wants a brand-new septic system in. Carter said the Township wants one that’s
in compliance. Cella said she filled out the STR application a while ago before they were able to purchase it and



Page 5 of 7, P&Z Minutes November 19th, 2025

she would have to redo it. The County said it is compliant but nonconforming. Sherri asked to look at it. Sherri
said it is considered to be a passing system and that’s all you need. Carter said when it’s nonconforming you
can’t add a bunch of bedrooms. The way it is right now is compliant. Cella said you can sell it the way it is right
now, and live there. Dave said that’s all he wanted to know if he could rent it out. Carter said you have to go
through the short-term rental application process. He said he did already but the Township denied it. Cella said it
was denied because it came back as nonconforming. Rick said he remembered it and he discussed with the state
of Minnesota and St. Louis County their conforming/ nonconforming and somewhere in there even though St.
Louis County says it works for a house, somewhere in here was that isn’t a system that Gnesen has approved.
Cella said she has to get a state permit also. Dave said the system is pure gravel and it’s worked for years. Rick
asked what the exact words are. Rick said he has worked with St. Louis County and six months later they
change the rules. Cella read off what the County said about it. Carter asked to look at it. Kathy asked for a date
on it. Cella said 6/12/2023. Kathy said nothing was provided to us to address the Stewarts’ concerns. Sherri said
compliant/ noncompliant are not the words we should be using. It should be conforming/ nonconforming. Her
opinion was, as long as it’s passing we should be good. If it’s nonconforming and a health threat, then it has to
be two months. Carter asked if it needs to be updated for 2025, Sherri said no, because it’s within the three-year
response and nobody has lived there. Dave said he would put one in if they had to but it’s a waste of money.
Rick would like to make a recommendation to this Board. He handled this the previous time and consulted with
St. Louis County. If he is in error in giving them their short-term rental, lets tell Rick to look at it again and
waive the fee if the zoning officer is in error. He hates the noncompliant part. Sherri made a motion to direct a
zoning officer to re-evaluate the STR permit request from Marcella and Dave Stewart again without the charge
of a new fee. It was seconded by Dick. Matt made an amendment to go off the end of Sherri’s motion “to charge
of no fee or requirement and resubmit and everything is retroactive from the original date of submittal.” Sherri
accepted the amendment. The motion was voted on and passed.

Chris and Jodi May Variance: Setting a date: Sherri asked why they are asking for a variance. Jodi said they
don’t meet side setbacks of 20 ft and the lake side the shoreline is angled and is 95 feet instead of the 100 feet
needed. The septic is already approved from the County and is on the map. A time was set up for a public
hearing at 6:30 pm, December 17, 2025. Planning Commission members will have an opportunity to come and
visit the lot. Kathy asked. If there was a leaching field. Jodi said no, there is a holding tank that would be
replaced with an actual septic. Mike said he had comments he will put in a letter for the December meeting.
There are structures on the property that will be removed to make room for the new structure. He said what is
there is closer to the lake and new construction would back it up. Carter asked about stakes in the ground. Chris
said he does not have that, but he has a sketch with new set back numbers. There was some confusion about
which lot was the May’s property. Carter asked if the County was talked to about the location of the leach field.
Jodi said yes, they have a permit for it already. Chris said he could have some flags in the ground.

Short Term Rental Question: Adam Marzolf: Adam explained his job took him away from his home on 4471
Carey Rd. He has been working with Mike and Sarah and Sara about a short-term rental. His property is 1,310
feet from the nearest short-term rental, the Island Lake Inn. He respects the reasons behind the ordinance but
was hoping to make the case to make it a short-term rental. He could operate it in a way respectful to the
community. There are a lot of trees and visual demarcations. To the north, east and west there are open lots. One
has a storage shed. It’s 1,935 feet riparian to the shoreline of the next dock for short- term rental with a
professional dock with two separate entrances. He does not see that as causing increased traffic. He is on 3.5
acres. The water is too shallow for boats. He would like to be able to keep the property and use it while he is up
here. He asked for advisement on this property. Sherri saw no problem with it. Kathy asked if he is currently a
resident. Adam confirmed he is a resident. He wanted to do about 50 per cent resident. Pete and Sherri discussed
how it would work for part time residency. Sherri said if it is not rented out, he would be at his home. Carter
said the problem is not the residency, but the distance standards set in the ordinance of 1,500 feet. Sherri said we
would need to do a variance. Matt said the short term ordinance, and what we were trying to prevent from
happening, and what Adam Marzolf is trying to do, he doesn’t think it would be going against it. The fear was
there was going to be put of town landlords buying up lots of property and running them like party houses and
ruining the residential character of our township. Because of that we have some pretty strict rules. Matt has
never had someone make a proposal like Adam’s. It would allow Gnesen residents to use their residential



Page 6 of 7, P&Z Minutes November 19th, 2025

property in a commercial way but under a controlled way to use their assets to generate capital without running
afoul of what we were concerned about, pristine lakeshore and changing the character. Carter said the 1,500 feet
distance between was to prohibit the clusters of these in certain parts of the lake. In other cases, we have been
pretty rigid on that. If we accept 1,300 feet, maybe that commercial property across from the restaurant by the
causeway might be eligible and we have been concerned about not doing that. Mike said the 1,500 feet was to
alleviate any concern for density or close population for noise and such, to keep them apart. Sound carries over
the water on the shoreline. It appears this is in a secluded area. Carter did not agree that because it was in the
trees, the 1,500 feet would not apply. The 1,500 feet was established from building to building. Nancy asked
Adam how long this would be for. Adam did not know. Mike asked if he was out of town, would he have
someone to take care of the place. Adam said he would. Matt said what the Town Board approved was a pretty
bright line, and so that we could have some sort of control on the next one two or ten people that want to make a
short term rental 900 feet away, would he contemplate that he would maintain it as a resident and use it in a way
that other people in the Town would have to use it on big weekends, like Grandma’s Marathon weekend, where
people were interested in renting out their houses because it generates money, but they still maintain residency.
Would he be able to give us an agreement that if he changes your residence, the status for his house would
change? It was discussed that the IUP would be appropriate int this case. Carter was concerned that if you grant
one that is close it will open the door for closer and closer distances. Carter didn’t know if you could put in
conditions of those kinds of suggestions Matt was talking about. Rick asked what “homestead” is. The
Assessor’s office doesn’t tell you you have to live there for any number of days. It just says you have to occupy
it on January 1 or December something to qualify for the taxes. Rick asked why don’t we have a residency. This
is our Township and we can’t be less restrictive. Matt noted the [UP use section of the Ordinance and the
conditional use section and recommended that Adam look at pages 76 and 84 of the Ordinance. Sherri thought
the IUP would be a good solution. The Homestead can be applied by a homeowner or relative by December 2, to
get it for the next year.

Sample Nuisance Ordinance: Nancy said we have been told by a few attorneys that our nuisance ordinance is
very gray and not really enforceable. This example was written for a small-town city, so there would need to be
changes for us because we have loggers, farmers, animals, different situations where it needs to be added and
some where it needs to be removed. Nancy asked for a committee to tweak it for the December 8 meeting. She
thought this one had a better verbiage and is more black and white. Matt said he would serve on the committee,
but would draft it into version two, so it is not overly time consuming for the committee. Carol was asked to be
on the committee.

Roles and Duties of the Zoning Officer: Carter said he had complaints about the role of the zoning officers are
functioning under. He would like the zoning officers to read the Ordinance that talks about their duties and
responsibilities. To summarize that, it is to enforce the Ordinance. Some of that has been taken care of with
meetings within the staff. Rick asked if Carter had certain complaints, could he forward them to him, he would
like to know. Mike asked if Carter wanted a summary. Carter said he wants him to read it and understand it. We
had a zoning officer that said his duty was to enforce the Ordinance and in order to that he had to help the clients
find ways to get around the Ordinance. That’s not part of the duties we want to convey. We are trying to avoid
that kind of thing. It was not one of these two gentlemen.

December Proposed Changes to Ordinance: Carter said if anyone has an ordinance change, it needs to get
turned in for the December meeting. December 5 was agreed on for the deadline. The Board will set up a public
hearing for the recommended ordinance changes Sherri said we are trying to get them done by
December/January so they can be in place by March.

Cannabis Ordinance: Carter said he was asked to review the current ordinance. It says retail businesses will be
permitted. You must have one availability for every 12, 500 population. We are asking to limit the number of
cannabis businesses to one because that is all the State requires. Sherri though low potency hemp should be
under the definitions section. That should come under registration and licensing or its own separate article.
Temporary cannabis event not being allowed could be put under the license. Matt asked who added the red
writing. Carter said several people, Sarah Blix was one of them that compiled it on paper. A lot of it came from
the State and the committee that worked on it, not wanting to have a bunch of cannabis activity and businesses



Page 7 of 7, P&Z Minutes November 19th, 2025

on every street corner. Carter clarified that we can limit the high potency but not the low potency. We do not
have to have any cannabis events. The committee said we did not want commercial cultivation, commercial
manufacturing, and no wholesale testing and commercial. Sherri asked if we could put “Temporary cannabis
events would not be allowed”.

Carter said the new change would say an [UP would be needed for both high potency and low potency retail.
For “security” it would say the applicant must meet all state rules for onsite security and have a plan must be on
file with the Township. It would be the same thing for “odor control” and “ventilation”. Carter stated that the
State says you have 30 days to respond to that application. And if you don’t it is automatically granted. This
gives the authority for the clerks to call for a special meeting for an [UP that deals with this particular issue only.
The clerks could call a special meeting and meet the 30-day timeline. Sherri wanted to change the wording
“may” to “will” under the “special meeting” part in the [UP section. We need to add the plan for “odor control,
waste disposal and security to the application. Under “local registration required”, it is recommended by the
State the high potency fee of 500 dollars with a renewal fee of 1,000 dollars. Low potency is 125 dollars;
renewal is 125 dollars. Pete suggested 250 dollars for the low potency renewal. Dick asked if you get the drinks
and was going to sell those, they would have to have a low potency license. Sherri said it also says it can’t be
next to a bar, but Carter said that it was not in the ordinance. Matt asked what the “zoning certification” is Sherri
said that should be clarified to “IUP”. It should be spelled out that Gnesen zoning certification will be the ITUP
permit. Sherri said the “IUP” should go in the definitions. Carter said the [UP must be issued or denied within
30 days of application. It was asked if we could change that because our IUP process takes more than 30 days
and we were told no. Carter said the State has required that we have one person in charge of the cannabis stuff in
the Township. Give it some thought who you want to take that on.

Zoning Officer’s Report: Rick said there were just the normal permits that come in and they were transitioning
over the Humes case to Mike. Carter asked when Rick gets a permit application in, and the applicant has
contacted him, does he have a system for the file about questions and answers that were given. Rick said yes, he
puts that on his paperwork. When he receives a zoning permit application, he writes down the time and date and
initials it at the top. He starts going through the check list and writes down first visit, telephone at this time and
date and when it was made. That stays in the official record with the second visit. If there are any subsequent
phone calls, he goes to the back of that sheet and writes down the questions and times. Carter said sometimes
what you think Rick communicated and what Carter thought he heard, it’s nice to have some follow up, as per
the conversation. That eliminates a lot of confusion.

Mike said he will be networking more with Rick on the Humes issue. Hemlock is a higher priority. Mike is
talking to Town Supervisor Nelson on the upcoming next steps. He is making sure Arrowhead Regional
Corrections and Dave Fink are still on board with the plan. Carter made note of the judge and the ruling
allowing the case to proceed.

Motion to Adjourn:

A motion was made by Pete to adjourn the meeting. It was seconded by Sherri. The motion passed, and the
meeting was adjourned at 9:08 pm.

Next Planning and Zoning meeting December 17, 2025, 7:00pm

Chris and Jodi May variance hearing December 17, 2025, 6:30pm

Respectfully submitted,

Sara Rowe, Deputy Planning and Zoning Secretary Carter Williams, Planning Commission Chair

Date



